
 

 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION II 
SAM NUNN ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER  

61 FORSYTH STREET, SW, SUITE 23T85 
ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30303-8931 

 
May 6, 2009

 
 
EA-08-244 
 
Mr. Cary Alstadt 
Manager, Columbia Plant 
Westinghouse Electric Company 
Commercial Nuclear Fuel Division 
Drawer R 
Columbia, SC  29250 
 
SUBJECT: NRC OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS REPORT NO. 2-2008-002, AND 

INSPECTION REPORT 70-1151/2009-003 
 
Dear Mr. Alstadt: 
 
This refers to an investigation conducted between October 12, 2007, and August 11, 2008, by 
the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission=s (NRC) Office of Investigations (OI) at the 
Westinghouse Electric Company.  The purpose of the investigation was to: determine whether a 
contractor employee willfully falsified ventilation filter reading data; review the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the submission of incomplete and inaccurate information to the NRC 
and review the circumstances surrounding the apparent recording of inaccurate data in the 
electronic training records system.  A Factual Summary, included as an enclosure to this letter, 
provides additional details of the OI investigation results.   
 
Based on the results of the OI investigation, three apparent violations (AVs) of NRC 
requirements were identified and are being considered for escalated enforcement action in 
accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy.  The current Enforcement Policy is located on the 
NRC=s Web site at www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol.html.   
 
The first apparent violation involves the failure to establish adequate management measures, as 
required by 10 CFR 70.62(d) to ensure that Items Relied On For Safety (IROFS) are available 
and reliable to perform their function when needed, in that the periodicity of required ventilation 
system filter differential pressure readings, which the ISA specified as IROFS Vent 902, was not 
specified in implementing procedures.  (AV 2009-03-01) 
 
The second apparent violation involves two examples of incomplete and inaccurate information 
maintained in records/programs required by the NRC.  In the first example, information 
documented in the corrective action program and provided to the NRC on September 11, 2007, 
regarding the circumstances surrounding falsified ventilation system data was inaccurate and 
incomplete as to the identification and employment status of the individual responsible for the 
falsification.  In the second example, training records documenting employee completion of 
required training were incomplete and inaccurate in that the Electronic Training and Procedures 
System (ETAPS) indicated training was completed when, in fact, it was not.  Based on the OI 
investigation, the NRC concluded that this example was due to the willful actions of the contract 
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foreman and resulted in the third violation as discussed below involving training records for 
employees.  Both examples constitute apparent violations of 10 CFR 70.9, “Completeness and 
accuracy of information” which provides that information provided to the NRC or required by the 
Commission’s regulations or license conditions to be maintained by the licensee shall be 
complete and accurate in all material respects.  The inaccurate information documented in the 
corrective action program was material because it was capable of influencing NRC decisions 
and follow up actions in response to the falsified ventilation data issue.  The inaccurate 
information documented in ETAPS was material because it was capable of influencing NRC’s 
conclusions relative to the completion of required training (AV 2009-03-02).   
 
The third apparent violation involves training records that were falsified by a contractor foreman 
who accessed individual electronic training records of various employees and acknowledged 
completion of certain training requirements, when those training requirements were not 
accomplished.  This is an apparent willful violation of License Application section 3.4.1, which 
states that operations to assure safe, compliant activities involving nuclear material will be 
conducted in accordance with approved procedures, and Columbia Plant Administrative 
Procedure CA-002, Columbia Plant Procedure System, Section 3.13, which states, in part, that 
ETAPS End Users must read and then acknowledge procedures governing their job 
responsibilities in ETAPS before performing work assignments or manufacturing processes  
(AV 2009-03-03).  
 
Before the NRC makes its enforcement decision, we are providing you an opportunity to either: 
(1) respond to the apparent violations within 30 days of the date of this letter or (2) request a 
predecisional enforcement conference.  If a conference is held, it will be closed to public 
observation in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy because the findings are based on 
an NRC Office of Investigations report that has not been publicly disclosed.  Please contact  
Mr. Daniel W. Rich, Chief, Fuel Facility Inspection Branch 3, Division of Fuel Facility Inspection, 
at (404) 562-4721, within 10 days of the date of this letter to notify the NRC of your intended 
response.  
 
If you choose to provide a written response, it should clearly be marked as a AResponse to 
Apparent Violation in Inspection Report 70-1151/2009-03; EA-08-244" and should include for the 
violations: (1) the reason for the apparent violations, or, if contested, the basis for disputing the 
apparent violations; (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results achieved;  
(3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations; and (4) the date when full 
compliance will be achieved.  Your response should be submitted under oath or affirmation and 
it may reference or include previously docketed correspondence, if the correspondence 
adequately addresses the required response.  If an adequate response is not received within the 
time specified or an extension of time has not been granted by the NRC, the NRC will proceed 
with its enforcement decision. 
 
In lieu of a predecisional enforcement conference, you may also request Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) with the NRC in an attempt to resolve this issue.  Alternative Dispute 
Resolution is a general term encompassing various techniques for resolving conflicts outside of  
court using a neutral third party.  The technique that the NRC has decided to employ is 
mediation.  Additional information concerning the NRC's ADR program is described in the 
enclosed brochure (NUREG/BR-0317) and can be obtained at http://www.nrc.gov/about-
nrc/regulatory/enforcement/adr.html.  The Institute on Conflict Resolution (ICR) at Cornell  
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University has agreed to facilitate the NRC's program as a neutral third party.  Please contact  
ICR at 877-733-9415 within 10 days of the date of this letter if you are interested in pursuing 
resolution of this issue through ADR.      
 
For administrative purposes, this letter is issued as NRC Inspection report 70-1151/2009-03.  In 
addition, please be advised that the number and characterization of the apparent violations 
described herein may change as a result of further NRC review.  You will be advised by separate 
correspondence of the results of our deliberations in this matter.   
 
In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," after completion of 
enforcement related activities in this matter, a copy of this letter, its enclosure and your response 
will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or 
from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of NRC’s document system (ADAMS).   
ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html (the 
Public Electronic Reading Room).  To the extent possible, your response should not include any 
personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made available to the 
Public without redaction.   
 
If you have any questions, please call Daniel W. Rich at (404) 562-4721. 
 
      Sincerely, 
      /RA/ 
 
      Joseph Shea, Director 
      Division of Fuel Facility Inspection 
 
Docket No. 70-1151 
License No. SNM-1107 
 
Enclosure:    Factual Summary, NRC Office of Investigations  
        Report No. 2-2008-002  
   
cc w/encl: 
Marc Rosser 
Manager 
Environment, Health and Safety 
Commercial Nuclear Fuel Division 
Electronic Mail Distribution 
 
Susan Jenkins 
Section Leader 
Division of Waste Management 
Bureau of Land and Waste Management 
Electronic Mail Distribution 
 
Distribution w/encl:  (See page 4)
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Distribution w/encl: 
M. Burrell, OE 
C. Carpenter, OE 
R. Correia, NSIR 
C. Evans, RII 
R. Rzepka, RII:OI 
D. Rich, RII 
N. Rivera, NMSS 
M. Adams, NMSS 
R. Gibson, RII 
S. Sparks, RII 
OEMAIL 
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FACTUAL SUMMARY 
OI REPORT 2-2008-002 

 
 
On October 12, 2007, an investigation was initiated by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission’s (NRC), Office of Investigations (OI), Region II (RII) to determine whether a former 
contractor, Prime State Insulation (PSI), employed at Westinghouse Electric Company (WEC), 
willfully falsified ventilation filter reading data. 
 
On September 11, 2007, WEC notified the NRC that differential pressure readings of the 
ventilation system filters had been falsified.  Specifically, WEC advised that its Environmental 
Health and Safety Department (EH&S) determined that on several occasions in May, June, and 
July 2007, a former PSI insulator who was tasked with periodically recording readings of 
differential pressure across filters of the ventilation system falsified the readings.  In response to 
WEC’s notification, an investigation was initiated by OI for the purpose of reviewing the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the falsification of ventilation filter data.   
 
On the basis of the OI investigation and staff review of this matter, it was determined that the 
ventilation filter data was not falsified by the former PSI Insulator, but by the former foreman for 
PSI.  The former PSI foreman admitted that pressure readings for May 12-13, June 10, and July 
6, 2007,1 were not taken.  Instead, the former PSI foreman advised that there was no coverage 
on site during the weekends in question and that he documented weekend readings by trending 
the data from the date the last reading was taken.   
 
The investigation also found information documented in the corrective action program and 
provided to the NRC on September 11, 2007, regarding the circumstances surrounding falsified 
ventilation system data was inaccurate and incomplete.  Specifically, the CAP document 
submitted to the NRC identified the former PSI insulator as the individual responsible for 
falsifying the ventilation filter data and indicated that the employee had been terminated when, in 
fact, the licensee had not identified or terminated the responsible individual. 
 
During the course of the investigation, the former PSI foreman also admitted to reading and 
acknowledging procedures for PSI employees contrary to WEC procedures which required all 
assigned employees to read and acknowledge procedures governing their job responsibilities in 
the Electronic Training and Procedure Systems (ETAPS) prior to performing work assignments 
or manufacturing processes.  The former foreman advised that he read and acknowledged 
employee procedures in ETAPS because there was no way to charge for the time employees 
spent completing these activities.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Enclosure 

                                                 
1 Although the former PSI foreman’s admission of falsifying the pressure readings for July 6, 2007, 
comports with the Plant Roof Filter Pressure Reading report he completed for that week, Saturday and 
Sunday of that week actually fell on July 7-8 in 2007. 
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